Regular Council Meeting
Special Council Meeting
Monday, December 22 - 6:00 — 8:00pm
Video call link: https://meet.google.com/hhd-nsqp-jwo
Or dial: (US) +1 505-738-1169 PIN: 990 321 816#

Mayor Rick Ufford-Chase, President Kevin Charboneau, Council Members, Carter Finegan, John Monette
and Andrew Touchette

Call the Meeting to Order
Additions/Deletions
Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Minutes: 12/15/2025
b. AP Warrants: 12/19/2025
c¢. PR Warrants:
d. Liquor Licenses, Vendor Permits, Special Events
i Eden Ice Cider Co.
Review of Finances
5. Resolution re: Invitation from Town of Stanstead, QC regarding action to Protect Lac
Memphremagog
6. Executive session under 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(1)(F) to discuss confidential attorney-client
communications for the purposes of rendering legal services to the City regarding
recommendations on Charter revisions.
7. Charter revisions and a decision on whether to move forward with a public hearing on January
5th, 2026.
8. Public Comment
9. New Business
10. Old Business
11. Set the Next meeting of the Council - Regular Meeting January 5, 2026 at 6 pm
12. Adjournment



Council Minutes

December 15, 2025

A duly warned meeting of the Newport city council was held on Monday, December 15, 2025 in the
council room in the Newport Municipal Building. Present were Mayor Rick Ufford-Chase, Council
President Kevin Charboneau, council members John Monette, Andrew Touchette, Carter Finegan, City
Clerk/Treasurer James Johnson, Financial and Office Administrator Kari Schulze, Police Chief Travis
Bingham, Rec. Director Mike Brown, Public Works Director Tom Bernier, Chip Stearns, Dominic Cloud,
John Klesch, Chet Greenwood, Frank Cheney

Mayor Ufford-Chase opened the meeting at 6:00 pm.

Additions/Deletions

None

Consent Agenda, Minutes of 12/1/25, AP Warrants 12/4/25 & 12/12/25, Liquor Licenses

Mr. Monette moved to approve the consent agenda. Seconded by Mr. Touchette, motion carried.

Consideration of Approval of City Manager Search Contract with VLCT

Dominic Cloud gave a presentation on how a search a city manager would be conducted. Ms. Carter
moved to approve the contract with VLCT, authorize the mayor to sign the contract and change the title
to Vermont League of Cities and towns. Seconded by Mr. Touchette, motion carried.

Personnel policy — Executive Session per 1 V.S.A. 313(a) (1) (F)

Mr. Charboneau moved that premature public knowledge of the City’s attorney client communications
would place the City at a disadvantage. Seconded by Mr. Monette, motion carried.

Mr. Charboneau moved to enter executive session to discuss confidential attorney-client
communications for the purpose of rendering legal services to the City regarding final recommendations
on the personnel policy and invite attorney John Klesch into executive session. Seconded by Mr.
Monette, motion carried.

Mr. Monette moved to come out of executive session. Seconded by Mr. Touchette, motion carried.

No action.



Mr. Charboneau moved to approve the revised Personnel Policy as presented. Seconded by Ms. Finegan,
motion carried.

Resolution Regarding Snowmobile use of Beebe Spur Trail

Ms. Finegan moved to approve the resolution declaring the Newport City’s opposition to allowing
snowmobiles on the Beebe Spur Rail Trail during the winter. Seconded by Mr. Touchette, motion
carried.

Review Balance Sheets and Budget to Actuals YTD

Chip Stearns reviewed the Balance Sheets, Due /To Due/From Summary Report and Budget Status
Report with the council.

Budget Presentation
Mayor Ufford-chase gave an update on the Vermont Bond Bank application.
Ms. Schulze and Mr. Bernier reviewed the draft 2026-27 Water/Sewer budgets with the council.

Chip Stearns, Ms. Schulze and Department heads reviewed debt service and proposed capital Expense
with the council.

Financial Reporting and Fiscal Practices

Ms. Finegan presented a Credit Card Policy to the city council. Ms. Finegan moved to approve the Credit
Card Policy. Seconded by Mr. Monette, motion carried.

Ms. Finegan updated the council on the Bank of America Agreement. Ms. Finegan moved to approve
Credit Card Policy acknowledgement. Seconded by Mr. Monette, motion carried.

City Charter, Consideration by Council to Warn a Second Public Hearing Thirty Days in Advance

Ms. Finegan moved to warn a Special Meeting for a second public hearing on proposed charter revisions
to be held on January 21, 2026. Seconded by Mr. Monette, motion carried.

Municipal Planning Grant

Ms. Finegan stated that the City has been awarded a grant to investigate Thermal Networking
Opportunities.



Review of Current Grants

Mr. Cheney reviewed all current grants with the council.

Executive Session Regarding Pay Increases for Specific Employees 1 V.S.A. 313(a) (3)

Ms. Finegan moved to enter into executive session per 1 V.S.A. 313(a) (3) and invite Mr. Bernier into the
session. Seconded by Mr. Charboneau, motion carried.

Mr. Monette moved to come out of executive session. Seconded by Mr. Touchette, motion carried.

No action.

Task Force Reports

Water/ Sewer, Mr. Monette noted working on water/sewer budget and policy questions. Next meeting
January 8™,

Housing Insecurity, Public Encampments, Community Safety, Mr. Charboneau no report. Mayor Ufford-
Chase reported the warming shelter may be open by Christmas.

Fire department Strategic Planning, Mr. Touchette had no report.

Public Comment
Ms. Chiarello commented on the charter regarding loans

Ms. Bjurling commented on the charter and personnel policy regarding at will employees.

New Business

None

Old Business

None

Next Meeting Date

Mr. Monette moved to set the next meeting for December 22, 2025. Seconded by Ms. Finegan, motion
carried.



Adjournment

Mr. Charboneau moved to adjourn at 10:00 PM. Seconded by Mr. Touchette, motion carried.

Attested This Day of December 2025

Mayor




CREDIT CARD POLICY Newport City December 15, 2025

PURPOSE. Credit cards provide a convenient method of obtaining goods and services for the City. However,
by their nature, credit cards provide an opportunity for unauthorized purchases and fraudulent activity. The
purpose of this policy is to establish criteria for the proper use of credit cards when conducting City business.

CARD HOLDERS AND LIMITS. The City Council will determine which positions and employees of the City will
be authorized to use a City credit card. Current policy designates the following as purchasing agents: City
Manager, City Treasurer, Department Heads, and designees. Prior to credit card use, authorized purchasing
agents must have a completed Credit Card Policy Acknowledgement Form. Cards will be issued to positions,
not personal names, of authorized purchasing agents. Newport City will have a limit of $50,000.00 in credit line
on the card, with purchase exceeding $5,000.01 triggering review by City Manager and/or council.

CREDIT CARD USE. Credit cards issued under this policy may only be for purchasing agents to conduct City
business. Credit cards may not be used for personal purchases, cash advances, or purchases that exceed the
cardholder’s authorized purchase limit. A cardholder who makes unauthorized purchases or advances will be
liable for the amount of such purchases or advances, plus any administrative fees charged by the bank in
connection with the misuse. Employees may be subject to disciplinary action for misuse of a City credit card,

up to and including termination. ]

SECURITY. Authorized credit card users are responsible for the card’s protection and custady and shall
immediately notify the City Manager and the credit card company or bank if the credit card is lost or stolen.

DOCUMENTATION AND PAYMENT. Each month, with submission of the credit card bill to the treasurer,
authorized credit card users shall submit documentation detailing the goods or services purchased, the cost of
the goods or services, the date of the purchase, the official business for which it was purchased and the
reference account for the expense to be used. For over-the-counter purchases, documentation will include the
invoice and customer copy of the charge receipt. For internet purchases, documentation will include a copy of
the receipt and order confirmation page. For telephone purchases, documentation will include a faxed copy of
the receipt from the vendor. City and staff will make timely payments toward the line of credit to avoid interest
payments and impacts on credit.The Financial and Office Administrator will administer cards and has the
authority to submit payments on card balance. If credit payments are due prior to council convening, the card
administrator will coordinate with the City Treasurer’s office to submit timely payment and prepare a warrant for
the same to present at the next available City Council meeting after approvat by the City Manager or Mayor.

SEPARATION. Prior to separation from the City, cardholders will surrender the credit card to the City Manager
or Mayor.

The foregoing Policy is hereby adopted by the City Council of the City of Newport, Vermont, this 15th day of
December and is effective as of this date until amended or repealed.

(Continued on next page)



Treasurer

City Council members




Credit Card Policy Acknowledgement Form for Authorized Purchasing Agents

Employee Information

Full Name:

Position/Title:

Department:

Date:

Policy Acknowledament

l, . acknowledge that | have received, read, and understood the City's
policies outlined in the Credit Card Policy. | agree to comply with these policies and understand that failure to
adhere may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment or contract. | understand
that these policies may be updated as required, and | will be informed of any changes. By signing below, |
confirm my acceptance of these policies and agree to abide by the standards set forth.

Employee Signature:

Date:

City Manager or Mayor

Name:

Signature:

Date:




CITY OF NEWPORT
SERVICE AGREEMENT
WITH
VERMONT LEAGUE OF CITIES AND GIEYS 7OWAS

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of , 20 by and between the
Vermont League of Cities and Towns, hereinafter referred to as the “LEAGUE,” and the City of

Newport, Vermont, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY".

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that there is a need for assistance in the recruitmentfor the

position of City Manager.

WHEREAS, the LEAGUE will provide recruitment consulting assistance upon the terms and
conditions of the mutual covenants, pramises and agreements contained herein, the parties agree

to the following:

A. ITIS MUTUALLY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS:

1.

\
'

That this agreement shall become effective upon legislative action during a duly warned

meeting by the CITY and the LEAGUE.

That the LEAGUE and CITY agree that the recruitment process for a City Manager will
take between three (3) and six (6) months, though some processes may take longer.
That this agreement may be amended, in writing, by mutual consent of the CITY and the

LEAGUE.
That the LEAGUE is an independent contractor and is not to be considered an employee of

the CITY for any purpose.

B. THE LEAGUE AGREES TO PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING SERVICES AS NEEDED:
The LEAGUE will work with the CITY to provide the following services as needed:

1.

Provide a consultant to manage, facilitate, and advise on the process and serve as
principal administrative lead for the search committee and/or Selectboard.

Work with search committee and/or Selectboard to identify desired characteristics,
attributes and qualifications to create a Position Profile.

Prepare a recruitment brochure that reflects the Position Profile and character of the
comimunity.

Review, revise or draft job description that aligns with recruitment brochure.
Recommend salary range based on recent experience, marketplace, and Position
Profile.

Set a mutually agreeable recruitment timeline including deadlines for applications,
interviews, second interviews and other associated critical milestones.

Draft and place advertisements in appropriate publications and on websites.

Page 10f3 , %



C.

D.

8. Receive, organize, and sort resumes for consideration by the CITY.

9. Draft proposed interview questions.

10. Conduct preliminary review of potential candidates prior to interviews.

11. Conduct reference checks and background investigations (criminal, social media,
and credit) of the finalists and provide a written summary of those efforts to the

CITY.
12. Serve as principal point of contact with applicants throughout the process.
13. Negotiate employment terms between CITY and candidate and work with the City

Attorney to draft agreement. ,
14. Provide additional services as requested if intrinsically related to the City Manager

selection process.

THE CITY AGREES AS FOLLOWS:
1. To provide allinformation necessary to conduct the recruitment process.
2. To, through legistative action (during a duly warned meeting), appointa primary point of
contact.
3. To make a final determination on which candidate to hire.
4. To honor the recruitment timeline.
5. To refrain from negotiating or communicating with candidates without knowledge of the

LEAGUE.
6. To paythe LEAGUE for professional and administrative services:
a. Aflatfee of $12,000.00 for the LEAGUE consultant’s time to deliver the services listed in

item B.

b. Reimbursement for the direct costs of advertising, brochure design and expenses
incurred during the project. (Estimated direct cost range: $3,100.00 - $5,000.00).

c. Contract fees and expenses shall be paid upon receipt of invoice from the LEAGUE.

INDEMNIFICATION
The CITY agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the LEAGUE and its employees from

and against any and all claims, actions, demands and lawsuits (together “claims”) and all
resulting costs, liabilities, damages and expenses including reasonable attorneys’ fees
(together “liabilities”) allegedly arising in whole or in part from any act or omission by the
LEAGUE related to the services performed for the CITY.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND DAMAGES
In no event shall the LEAGUE’s liability and damages to the CITY for any claim made against the

LEAGUE related in any manner to the services performed, or not performed, by the LEAGUE for
the CITY exceed the amount of compensation the LEAGUE has received from the CITY for work
performed under this Agreement. In no event shall the LEAGUE be liable to the CITY for any
indirect, special or consequential damages, nor for any claim against the LEAGUE by any

Page 20f3 %



person or entity arising from or in any way related to this Service Agreement.
The provisions hereof are binding on the parties hereto, their successors and assigns.

VERMONT LEAGUE OF CITIES AND CITYS

BY:
Executive Director

DATE:

CITY OF NEWPORT

BY:
Rick Ufford-Chase, Mayor, City of Newport

DATE:

Page 3 of 3



Draft Resolution — Newport — 12/8/25 — Draft 5

WHEREAS, Orleans County is blessed with a bounty of outdoor recreation activities
such as hunting, fishing, boating, kayaking, running, biking, hiking, walking,
snowmobiling, cross country skiing and downhill skiing, along with cherished and well
used recreational infrastructure such as the 450 miles of groomed VAST snowmobile
trails, The Craftsbury Outdoor Center, The Memphremagog Ski Touring Foundation
(now known as Memphremagog Trails), and Jay Peak Resort that are a part of the
lifeblood of our community and create a hub of autdoor recreation activity that draws

visitors from near and far.

WHEREAS, when the Beebe Spur was first converted to a rail trail, in or around 1998,
the Environmental Board ruled that there would be no adverse environmental impact
(and no Act 250 jurisdiction to review the project) because no motorized vehicles would
be allowed on the four miles of trail. As a result, Memphremagog Trails obtained
permission to groom the trail in winter for traditional, two track skiing and for skating. In
doing so, the Beebe Spur became linked to the cross-country ski trails in Primeau

Woods and elsewhere.

WHEREAS, the Beebe Spur is four miles long, three of them in the Town of Derby and
one of them within the City of Newport.

WHEREAS, for almost three decades, Memphremagog Trails, has invested in grooming
equipment, its volunteers have regularly groomed the trail throughout the winter, and
hundreds, if not thousands, of cross-country skiers and other pedestrians have made
regular use of the tralil, it being especially well used by young families, seniors, and elite
skate skiers. Its gentle grade and extraordinary views make it an ideal and relatively
pristine place for non-motorized winter recreation.

WHEREAS, the City of Newport and the Newport Downtown Development Corporation
have spent years and significant resources promoting Newport and the surrounding
towns of Orleans County as a hub of world-class outdoor recreational activity, including
our VAST trail system and the Memphremagog Trail system. This includes a brochure
featuring the Waterfront Recreational Path stretching from Newport to Beebe and

including Memphremagog Trails.
WHEREAS, the 450 miles of the groomed VAST trail system in Orleans County and the

groomed Memphremagog Trail system have co-existed together without adverse impact
on either and to the mutual benefit of our entire community.

WHEREAS a handful of landowners abutting the Beebe Spur are intent on using the
trail for access to the VAST Trail system and VTrans is intent on allowing such use.



WHEREAS. Pursuant to 23 U.S.C. § 217(h), motorized vehicles are not permitted on
nonmatorized trails and pedestrian walkways funded under 23 U.S.C. Exceptions to this
general rule exist for maintenance purposes, motorized wheelchairs, snowmobiles
(when snow conditions and State or local regulations permit), electric bicycles, “and
such other circumstances as the Secretary [of the United States Department of

Transportation] deems appropriate.”

WHEREAS, 5 V.S.A. § 3408a (b)(11) prohibits the use of all motorized vehicles on the
four Vermont Rail Trails, except for:

“(A) maintenance purposes;

“(B) snowmobiles, subject to applicable State rules, when the Vermont
Association of Snow Travelers, Inc. has declared the Statewide Snowmobile Trail

System officially open;”

WHEREAS, the four-mile Beebe Spur Rail Trail is only 7 feet wide in many parts
(compared with LVRT and MVRT which are at least 8 and 10 feet wide), with steep
embankments in many places, making it impossible for two-way snowmobile traffic and

inherently dangerous for shared use with other users.

WHEREAS, any use of the trail by even a few snowmobiles will ruin the grooming
designed for cross-country skiing, rendering such shared use of this resource
incompatible in addition to being inherently dangerous.

WHEREAS, once opened to a handful of snowmobilers, others can’t be prevented from
using the trail. In fact, VTrans now advertises that the Beebe Spur is open to all

snowmobilers.
WHEREFORE, by this resolution,

The City of Newport declares its opposition to allowing snowmobiles on the
Beebe Spur Rail Trail during the winter

Because it is wholly incompatible with the existing, long standing, and
cherished use of this trail as a well-groomed cross-country ski trail and the
investment of Memphremagog Trails in this recreational resource which is
now used regularly throughout the winter by hundreds from near and far.

Because the trail is only 7 feet wide in most places, with steep
embankments on either side in many places, its use by snowmobiles is
inherently dangerous to two-way snowmobile traffic as well as
cross-country skiing and other pedestrian users.



Because, closing this four-mile stretch of trail to snowmobiles has no
adverse impact on the 450 miles of groomed VAST trails in Orleans

County

Because it is detrimental to the efforts of Newport and Newport Downtown
Development to promote itself as a hub of outstanding outdoor
recreational activity.

The City of Newport urges

VTrans to use its regulatory authority under 5 V.S.A. § 3408a (b) to close
the Beebe Spur to snowmobiles for all of these reasons and,

in the absence of such action by VTrans

The City of Newport urges

the Vermont legislature to amend 5 V.S.A. § 3408a (b) to prohibit the use
of the Beebe Spur Rail Trail by snowmobiles because of the special local
conditions that exist on this four-mile stretch of rail trail.



9202/%0

uoge|dwoy) o aojoAu|

0 00°666'6% 00°666°6Y souEls[SSY JULlad GOV € -VdiV | $Z02/90  mai Bolieweydely Jeiemuniols
9202/¥0 | uofe|duwieo uo sajoAY| 0 00°666'6 00°'666'6% BOUBISISSY JULIe B10Y £-VdMY | ¥202/80 ALMM JuLed JejemuLols
920Z/¥0 | uopeKluiod Uo edjoAul 0 00°666'6¥ 00°666'6Y BOUEIS|SSY JULISd BIOY £ YV | $20Z/80  18juUaD Aoay uued ISIEMLLIOIS
9202/¥0 | uohs|dwion uo BajoAY| 0 00'666'6¥ 00°'666'6Y SOUEIS(SSY JUWISd BIOY € “YdHV | +202/90  yoeag Anoid yuned JajemuLiolg
9202/t0 | uopojdwios uo edjoAul 0 00°666'6Y 00°666'6Y 83UBSISSY Jjulad 813V € “YJdHY | $Z0Z/90  MEd leupisg juued Islemunals

Qgl | pepuadx3 se pagjoau 00:000'Z1 0000009 00°000'8¥ SuBILA | ¥202/80 Apmg Budeog pedppfag
vzl
9Z0Z/IE/2L | Pepuadya se paojoAul 0| ei'vaL'esy TrPeL'69y | dM3IW seojes [eieusy @ sBuiping {du3an)Bold soue|sey ABsau3 Bpig
00°000'0€ 00°000°0E9 00°000°009 $ 101 398{01d puelg puesy

payoeds

1N pspuedx3 se paojoAy| VIN VN 00°000'00L UOREPUNOZ UBWSAL] Joajoid puslg pueln
VE0Z/1E/80 | Ppapuedx3 se pasjoau| VN VIN 00°000°005 leuoissalbuoD/anH | 220zeL alod puespueln
920Z/0£/60 | POpuadx3 se paaloau] 0| 00000'v8L 00°000'¥8L OSO YV | $202/L0 uojeledas 0O
£9°082°GLL'Z | 00°000°586'Y | LS612'6922 4 12101 JJOAIOSBY [IaMO)] JGYEM BPISISET

9zZ/Le/gl | papusdx3 se pasjoAu] | aimpuadxs (210} JO %08 VIN 00°000'66 weibosd Aleroday AUnWLc) | LZOZ/E0  UOAIGSBY/IBMOL J9jBAA apisiseT
yziLerRL oydn papung ] VIN | E'61L'22") $ Jewaoe|day BNUAASY YdRIY | £2-2202  JIOAIS3Y/IGMOL J6JBAN BpISISES
9Z/ILERL papuadx se s0joAUl 00Z26'598 |  00°226°So¥ 00°000'004 9082 | 6102190 punoibifeld sued seupien
00'Zys'9eZ'y | 00°28£'909') 00'SY8'69¢ 4 |2j0) s[euB|g Aemosnen
92/08/6 | Pepuadx3 se pasjoau] V¥IN VIN 00°G18'6L} Wweln sosesiq Auoed yasn | 120z/80 s|aubig Aemasne)
9Z/0s/6 | poepuadx3 se pesjoAu) VIN VIN 00°000°052 [euciBoy suspiog WISYLON | 6102720 sjeuBig Aemesnen

poyen $1s0D $ plemy
ojep dx3 | juawsainooig puny $uopeB|iqo A1O yoafoad ety Ayyu3 Bujpsemy ojep piemy jofjLL jueio

SZ/ZLIZL — @AY [Bulpuny juel 319 Jodmen




swadojane(

agl uopaiduiod uo Auj 000't 000'ce 000°0€ pue BuisnoH jo 1daq 1A jueig) Buluueld Edouny
BujoBuo papuadxe se Auj 0| =ybupuay ajdyny HusyS Auno) UopLIYD INQ/Bulapg pajensia
BujoBuo pesuadx3 sk Auj 0 00°000°09 00°000'09 fewoyy sayg Jo 1deq wesBaid INSIA
90T/ ERL juoydn papung 0 00°000% 00°000% §30jAlag [RIBUSE) pUB BUIPINg IA Wes U uppng
Bujobuo uone|dwod 18 Au| 0 abejuaiag 00°065'LL 930 LA 01100 BoUBS|NN openby
BujoBiuo B e | uQ Bugptodey 00°00012 - aoov JUEIS b3 BPNeA 2UI98T
SEES Apuowt sojoaur 0 | sy Bupuad aalL weiBosg Suipuny uspleg sucig Bujpund ad
Cuptug pesuadxe s meiq 0 a|qeaiBio 00°002'6 }'1-652- 1.4} Yueg puog IA {ueoj) uogensuiLpYBURssYIBUT OSD
Baidtu0 Pasuadxe se meig 0| eiqenifuoy 0002’22 0'b-¥8E-14 Yueg puog LA (ueo]) uoyexnsUNpY/BupssuBuT 0SD
gZ/1E/ZL | uopeldwos uo evlou) 00'0006-%0L | 00'000%0E 00°000'22 10v| t2ozL  ubiseq foid eBpug Kemesnes
9z/LE/E papuadxa se §910AU| 00°€ES 00°000% 00" Lbt'E “SuU0D [eusLLLCIAUT jodeq | Bujobug dIMS
92/Le/04 | uofieidwos uo aajoAu] 00°000'9L -%0S 00'000'Z¢ 00°000'9}) saalnsg [e1suss 3 sBuipling A | $20Z/0L paloid Uigen Yoeag Anoig




Page 1

12/19/25 City of Newport Accounts Payable
12:21 pm Check Warrant Report # Current Prior Next FY Invoices stherrien
Unpaid Invoices For Check Acct 01 (GENERAL FUND) From 12/19/25 To 12/19/25
Purchase Discount Amount Chack Cheok

Vendor Inveice Invoice Description Amount Amount Paid Number Date
AIGS AIGS AI GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LLC 9434 AP Professional Bervices 2035.00 0.00 —————--- e L /==/--
ALLEN ENG ALLEN ' ENGINEERING & CHEMICAL ICS-503169-0 WWTF Supplies/Materials 2917.86 0.00 ~= ,-- -=/=~/~-
APPLIEDSP APPLIED SPECIALTIES INC 358696 WWTF Supplies/Materials 4883.68 0.00 ~ == = )=
CALI TECHE CAI TECHNOLOGIES 23994 Axis GIS Support 1950.00 0.00 - —=/~=f ==
CASELLA  CASELLA WASTE MGT INC 3216659 Septage Disposal 3373,28 0.00 -——————- g /—=/--
COMPASS M COMPASE MINERALS AMERICA 1578900 Bulk Salt 2946.27 0.00 —- S -=/==f~-
COMPASS M COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA 1577718 Bulk Salt 8994.00 0,00 —-ew—=m-- fi== E===——c2) == /==l
COMPASS M COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA 1575633 Bulk Salt 3112.38 0.00 —-~mm=mm—n S e oo /==/=-
CONB COMM CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 010926 Pump Station Alarm Lines 78.49 0.00 ———==—m- LE= E==—===m] —o =y~
ENDYNE ENDYNE INC 559572 Lab Services 125.00 0.00 Slis -=/==f-=
ENDYNE ENDYNE INC 559362 Lab Services 75,00 0.00 . ~=f==/--
ENDYNE ENDYNE INC 559363 Lab Services 75.00 0.00 y - e e
ENDYNE ENDYNE INC 559551 Lab Services 25,00 0.00 - ==
FREDS FRED'E PLUMBING & HEATING INC 113025 Fuel Acct: 80489 5218.98 0.00 ~-=mm——- L == E==SSmg £ f==t=-
FREDS FRED'S PLUMBING & HEATING INC 11/30/25 Fuel Acct: 1661 1820,42 0.00 - ===
FREDS FRED'S PLUMBING & HEATING INC 11.30.25 Fuel Acct: 5369 4417.76 0.00 ——m—=m=m mm mmmmeee o o /-=/--
GATES GATE'S ELECTRIC INC 6510 Sludge Press Breaker 292,50 0.00 ===—-——=.== —-=-mmem -- /==/--
SCHUKA KART SCHULZE 120525 Reimbursement = Google 816.20 0.00 ~—=———~~ Vo e - /~=/--
SCHUKA KARI SCHULZE 12/08/25 Reimbursement - Google 62.33 0.00 .- =l
SCHUKA KARI SCHULZE 12.05.25 Reimbursement - Domain 21.19 0.00 ——r-~=—= R it /=~/-=
LD SAFE L AND D SAFETY MARKING CORPORA 12456-145931 Pavement Marking 4059.73 0.00 —-=--——-- - o == i
LERLANC'S LEBLANCS PEST CONTROL 31570 Pest Control 100.00 0.00 -- Lo e —=/-=/-=
LEBLANC'S LEBLANCS PEST CONTROL 31615 Pest Control 55.00 0.00 -—=—---- —— /==/-=
MISSION C MISSION COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 2015684 Contract 97166 & 97678 1270.80 0.00 —=====r= S e - /==/-=
MSK ATTY MSK ATTORNEYS 60575 Professional Services 1619.50 0.00 ————---- et /==/-=
NEMRC NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL RESCURCE 58257 Professional Services 4730.00 0.00 o - =)=
NEMRC NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL RESOURCE 58261 Professional Services 715.00 0.00 -——=—--- M e R /-1
NWPT AMBL NEWPORT AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC 251 December Coverage 21426.16 0.00 ~=m==mr- =S S-Ee=ss = /==1--
NWPT RENT NEWPORT RENTAL CENTER INC 1583686 Supplies/Materials 60.00 0.00 ———----—- ST e e /-=/--
OREILLY O'REILLY AUTC PARTS 5691-234913 Parts 109.90 0.00 = -= —=f=/~=
OREILLY O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 5691-234827 Parts 16.81 0.00 -—--—--- s EE— - /=1
OREILLY O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 5691-234826 Parts 176.25 0.00 «=-—-——- it Vit
OREILLY O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 5691-234308 Parts 29.99 0.00 ————--—- . /==/--
PABSBK PD PASSUMPSIC SAVINGS BANK 122025 2025 - 10 Year Note 27628,11 0.00 — = )=
PASSBK PD PASSUMPSIC SAVINGS BANK 12.20.25 Water Tower BAN 19098.47 0.00 -——=~~-- f=s] ~==-==== = /==/--
DECKHAM  PECKHAM MATERIALS CORP 1209939 Supplies/Materials 284.58 0.00 ==f~=/-=
PECKHAM  PECKHAM MATERIALS CORP 1209424 Supplies/Materials 881.36 0.00 -—/-=/--
PITNEY PITNEY BOWES (POSTAGE) 011126 Postage 2024.75 0.00 S A/
R R CHARL R R CHARLEBOIS INC IE79333 Parts 159.38 0.0C =)=
R R CHARL R R CHARLEBOIS INC RC90975 Truck Repairs 2692.59 0.00 -—/-=/--
R R CHARL, R R CHARLEBOIS INC TE77846A Parts 54.05 0.00 eses
SOUTHBAY SOUTH BAY SUPPLY 795165 Supplies/Materials 109.71 0.00 —memmm—e —m —mmmmm e = /==/--
SOUTHBAY SOUTH BAY SUPPLY 795524 Supplies/Materialg 48.99 0.00 ———————- Jmm memeeae —— /==/--
SOUTHBAY SOUTH BAY SUPPLY 795368 Supplies/Materials 154.92 0,00 it - ==/
SOUTHBAY SOUTH BAY SUPPLY 795359 Supplies/Materialse 124.98 0.00 ~=mm—rmen, m- - /=]
SP&F ATT SP&F ATTORNEYS PC 97501 pProfessional Services 12523.30 0.00 ——==m—=m.-m —mmmmeee e f~f—=
TAPLINSEP TAPLIN SEPTIC PUMPING AND PORT I6475 Service 70.00 0.00 ~-=m-m=m pmm mmmmmmmm - /==/==
GRANITE THE GRANITE GROUP 19146798-00 Supplies/Materialg 27.21 0,00 —-==—~r-—= QoL CEETTEREReses i
MEMPRESS THE MEMPHREMAGOG PRESS INC. 64425 Metex Dcor Hangers 162.C0 0.00 ———---mm == mmmmmmme e f=sl==
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 348684 Supplies/Materials 3.79 0,00 m=mmmmem mm —mmmmeem - /1=



Page 2

12/19/25 City of Newport Accounts Paysble
12:21 pm Check Warrant Report # Current Prior Next FY Invoiceg stherrien

Unpaid Invoices For Chack Acot Ol (GENERAL FUND) From 12/19/25 To 12/19/25

Purchase Discount Amount Chack Check

Vendor Invoice Invoice Description Amount Amount Paid Number Date
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 346871 Supplies/Materials 66.48 0.00 - - -]
DIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 346777 Supplies/Materials 138,53 0.00 —=e—==—- Jom mem— /=1~
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347128 Supplies/Materials 49.88 0.00 —mmm—m—— == mmmmmmmm ——f-— /-
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 346897 Supplias/Materials 18,04 0.00 == S-- =)=
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347094 Supplies/Materials 16.62 0.00 —-—--—-=-  m- mmmeme /~=/--
PIC S8HOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 346746 Supplies/Materials 77.71 0,00 —=—moman, ma s /o[-
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347235 Supplies/Materials 37.99 0.00 - —— =] =)=
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347231 Supplies/Materials 17.09 0.00 =m==ma—— S Semeee—— oo /==/--
PIC SHOV TEE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347222 Supplies/Materials 50.34 0.00 ——======, == —mmmmmmm ==/ /-
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347269 Supplies/Matarials 8.52 0,00 - - ==
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 344505 Supplies/Materials 237.45 0.00 - -~/-=/-=
PIC BHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 348179 Supplies/Matarials 37.96 £.00 = - =f==f-
PIC SHOV THE PICKR & SHOVEL INC 348166 Supplies/Materials 40.84 0.00 ——————==, = mmmmmmmm oo fem
PIC SHOV THE RPICK & SHOVEL INC 348103 Supplies/Materials 11,75 0,00 =====ww- sm= memmmmse o= fen o
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 348071 Bupplies/Materials 16.99 0.00 ———-———- - =mmmmmem /- /-~
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347987 Supplies/Materials 9.38 0.00 - ol
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347933 Supplies/Materials 299.96 0.00 ——-—-——— yom Eme————— - /==/--
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347705 Supplies/Materials 33.79 0,00 —=ww——=—= o= Hms e mmfmefmm
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347829 Supplies/Materialsg 20.42 0.00 =—==mmme m— mm——— e
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347846 Supplies/Materials 99,64 0.00 “=wmm———- o — - o=f==f-
PIC SHOV THE PICK & BHOVEL INC 347879 Supplies/Materials 33.24 0.00 == SR e —— ===
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347897 Supplies/Materials 92.12 0.00 —==m—wum (o R f o
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347847 Jupplies/Materials 20.98 0.00 —==-———- e /==/-=
PIC SHOV THE PICK & SHOVEL INC 347885 Work Attire 2016.43 0,00 mmmmm——e smm memensan o [
TISALES TI-SALES INC INVO1B9523 IMeter Supplies/Materials 27688.48 0.00 - e
UNITED AG UNITED AG & TURF NE 11404361 Supplies/Materials 108.24 0,00 ~=mmmma— (o mmmmmm—— e [~/
UNITED AG UNITED AG & TURF NE 11404358 Supplies/Materials 197.37 0.00 s -=/==/--
UNITED AG UNITED AG & TURF NE 11411720 Supplies/Materials 16.72 0.00 —vm————- |y = — =
UNITED AG UNITED AG & TURF NE 11402365 Parts 4,99 0.00 ==wm—mms == mmmmmmee o f o[
USABLUE USA BLUEBOOK INV00903863 Supplies/Materials 200.12 0.00 = ==/l
USABLUE USA BLUEBOCK INVO0898480 Supplies/Materials 200.12 0.00 . - —=f=—/—
VIRURALWA VERMONT RURAL WATER ASSOCTATIO 23115 Exam Registration 64.00 0.00 -~ e -=/==/~-
VESTIS VESTIS 27675266 Work Attire 358.94 0.00
VIELEC VT ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 010925 15667.33 0.00

WESTCON WESTON & SAMPSON CMR., INC, 12255094 Well 2 & Pump Repairs 76354.00 0.00



City of Newport Accounts Payable

Page 3 of 3

12/19/2025
12:21 pm Check Warrant Report # Current Prior Next FY Invoices stherrien
Unpaid Invoices For Check Acct 01 (GENERAL FUND) From 12/19/25 To 12/19/25
Purchase Discount Amount  Check Chack
Vandor Invoice Invoice Description Amount Amount Paid Number Date
267,970.13 0.00 0.00

Report Total

To the Treasurer of City of Newport, We Hereby certify
that there is due to the several persons whose names are
listed hereon the sum against each name and that there
are geod and sufficient vouchers supporting the payments
aggregating § *¥%267,970,13
Let thig be your order for the payments of these amounts.

CITY COUNCIL




12i1%/25, 9111 AM

DLL Application: DLL - Application - 67845

Home (/DLLLIcenseManagment/s/}

Application
DLL - Application - 67845

APPLICATION DETAILS RELATED INFORMATICN

~ Applicatian Infarmation

DLL - Agplication ld
DLL- Appllcatlon 67845

Business Entity Name
Eden Ice Clder Company

Appllcant Emall
mmm@smmrm“ mmﬂgmmﬂmi

Buslness Entity Phone
(802) 334-4232

Renewal App)icaticn

(<

Foundatlonal License

LP-030687 (/DLLLIcenseManagment/s/dll-

licgnsemaster/a5A8200000008AQE AY/|p030687)
Town Fee

115
Application Fee
1 15, OO

Llcense/PermIt Locatlun Descrlptlon

EApected start date of Half Year License

Deslgnated Caterers Detalls

Days Slnce Last Modified
-1

Estlmated tlme penod for alcohol

Name and address from whom you purchase

Renewal Change Indlcated

Renewal Change Description

URL for Policies & Procedures @

URL far Duties @

Send Approval Ema]l

(-]

\/ Location Detalls

Physical Locatlon Name @
Eden Ice Clder(MANU)

Physlcal Locatlon Street 1
150 Maln Street

Physlcal Lccatuon Street 2/UnltJSuite

Reject i I
Fas

J Town PavmentReceuved ! Downlead

——— o

Appllcant Actlon Reqmred

External Status
Appllcation sent to munlcipallty
Town Clerk/ Municipal Jurlsdlction
Newport City

Applicatton Type @
Llcense

Appllcatlon Category
F|r5t C Iass

Appllcaf:lun For
Flrst Class Restaurant/Bar License

Historical Id
1RST

Huldlng Tobacco ticence

’

Not Holdlng Tobacco License

ApphcantActIon Comments

Town User Approval/| Re]ection Comments

Quantlity of Alcohol required

wlat purpose this alcahol Is used to be

Wherels th|s alcohol to be used

Locatlon
N-Ql?‘r‘ﬁb QDL..License\hn,w,meggsfdeta}lfaﬂm 0027 N1 y EAG)

Address of warehouse lacated In Vermont:

Name Address of Vermont Wholesale Dealer

hitnarHdlinartal my varmant anv/Di | 1 irensaManaameant/s/dil-anplieatinn/a&2anN0ONNTvCnBAAV/Hil-annlinatinn-R7 845

i ot e i

113



12715725, 9:51 AM

DLL Application; DLL - Application - 67845

Physical Location City/Town

Newport

Physical Location State

Vermont

Physical Location ZIp

05855
~ Education Detalls

Student Name Training Completion Date

Rlley Duffie 6/14/2024

Maode of Tralning Valld Tl

DLC Online Tralnlng 6/14/2026

Type of Tralning

First Class (On Premise)
v Premises Lease Detalls

Do you Lease the Premises Landlord Name

Yes Northeast Klngdom Tasting Center LLC
Landlord Emall Lease Explration Date

» Information

Food Meal & Rooms Certificate/Business Accoun

MRT-10019430
Slgner's Name Lodging!ifllcensed as a Hatel)
Johanna Demers
T -
| Questlon | Poll

— e e S S ——— e e i, e o et e s e — -
1 What would you [ike to know? J Ask

28im ago (/DL LicenseManagment/s/feed/0D5e600001BMLIXCAN)

|r €& Search this feed...

{/DLLLicenseManagment/s/profile/005t0000008noMtAAI) (Eden Specialty Ciders) created this dif application,

R UER . TP PP p— - —
|
é DLL - Application - 67845
[
[. IR X oo s SRl - Sm— . - -
| View more dal
e =T & R CUNPEIS e i s N
i Like & Comment

e ll Write a comment...

Contact Violatlons
Vlolation Id v FirstName v Last Name v Contact Role

CV-4330 (httpsy//dliportalmyy..

Thomas Leger

Jennlfer Detweller

CW-4904 (hitps://dlportal.myy...

Leger

Detweller

=2 R ; '"...'.1
r-le;

v

o _i

|

|

I S —— S — __...!

b
|
|
}

i
v  Dateof Ofﬁ

v  Offense

Prlor Convlctlon Reported
Prior Convlctlon Reported

i
ok
b

|

httmas fdllnnrtal mu uarmnnt aauDl T irancalMananmantic/dli-annliratinn/af2anNNONNTyvCnRAAV/dlannlinatinn-R7R45

2/3



‘ CANTLN
(C3

At a regular meeting of the Council of the Municipality of Stanstead Township held
on the tenth (10t") day of November in the year town thousand twenty-five (2025), at
the usual time and place of meetings.

Present: Ms. Johanne Fradette, Ms. Marie-Josée Filteau, Ms. Thérése McCutcheon, Mr.
Mario Cantin, Mr. Andrew Phaneuf and Mr. Brian Wharry.

All forming a quorum, under the chairmanship of Mayor Jean-Pierre Berger.

RESOLUTION NUMBER 25-11-116

8.5 PROTECTION OF LAKE MEMPHREMAGOG FROM LEACHATE ORIGINATING FROM
THE COVENTRY, VERMONT LANDFILL

WHEREAS Lake Memphremagog is a natural and cultural jewel of the Eastern Townships,
shared between Canada and the United States, and plays a fundamental environmental,
cultural, economic, and social role for the surrounding communities;

WHEREAS this lake is a source of drinking water for more than 185,000 Canadians;

WHEREAS the municipalities of Sherbrooke, Magog, Potton, and Saint-Benoit-du-Lac draw
their drinking water from Lake Memphremagog, and the municipalities of Austin, the
Township of Stanstead, and Ogden are in its immediate vicinity;

WHEREAS the only landfill site in the State of Vermont is located at the head cf Lake
Memphremagog, in the town of Coventry, and the lake flows from south to north, from the
United States into Canada;

WHEREAS this landfill generates significant amounts of leachate, containing per- and
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS or "forever chemicals") and other toxic and hazardous
pollutants;

WHEREAS the discharge of this leachate into the Lake Memphremagog watershed has been
prohibited since November 1, 2019, thanks in particular to the sustained efforts of the
organizations Don’t Undermine Memphremagog’s Purity (DUMP) and Memphremagog
Conservation Inc. (MCI);

WHEREAS the Memphrémagog RCM, as well as the Cities of Magog and Sherbrooke,
formally opposed, as early as 2004, the treatment of Coventry’s leachate at the Newport
municipal wastewater treatment plant, and this opposition remains fully justified;

WHEREAS these same municipalities and the Memphrémagog RCM were successful in
achieving an initial moratorium banning the treatment of leachate at the Newport
wastewater treatment facility from 2004 to 2009;

WHEREAS action by representatives from the Memphrémagog RCM, the municipalities of
Sherbrooke, Magog, and other lakeside communities, along with humerous environmental
organizations, led to the permanent closure in 2010 of the Bestan landfill operated by Waste
Management in Magog, explicitly aiming to protect Lake Memphremagog from a known
source of pollution;

WHEREAS the National Assembly of Québec unanimously adopted, on June 37, 2021, a
motion calling for the permanent ban of leachate discharge into the Lake Memphremagog
watershed;



Tl

Resolution number 25-11-116

WHEREAS the Canadian Consulate General wrote to Governor Scott in April 2024 “to
express Canada's concern about the application from Casella Waste Systems to amend its
discharge leachate pretreatment permit for the Coventry landfill, particularly the proposal
to attempt to remove per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) from leachate, (then)
injecting (residuals) into concrete blocks and then burying them at Coventry landfill.

WHEREAS the Boundary Waters treaty of 1909, Article IV “Itis further agreed that the waters
herein defined as boundary waters and waters flowing across the boundary shall not be
polluted on either side to the injury of health or property on the other.”

WHEREAS Health Canada issued drinking water quality guidelines for PFAS substances in
August 2024;

WHEREAS the State of Vermont adopted in May 2024 the Environmental Justice Act (S.259),
which recognizes the importance of marginalized populations in environmental decision-
making, and that the population living within the Lake Memphremagog watershed
represents 6% of Vermont’s total population;

WHEREAS despite the current moratorium, leachate could once again be discharged into
the Lake Memphremagog watershed at the end of this period if the technology implemented
by the landfill operator is effective in achieving Vermont’s regulatory standards;

WHEREAS treating leachate within the Lake Memphremagog watershed raises serious
environmental, health, and ethical concerns, particularly as it could facilitate a new
expansion of the Coventry landfill, increase the risk that treated leachate may again be
discharged into the watershed, and raise the possibility that leachate from other landfills
could also be treated on site;

WHEREAS the discharge of leachate, treated or not , into the Lake Memphremagog
watershed poses a serious risk to public health, notably due to the persistent presence of
toxic and hazardous pollutants such as arsenic, cadmium, and PFAS, a large family of
thousands of chemical substances, many of which are recognized as endocrine disruptors,
bio accumulative, toxic to reproduction, and proven or suspected carcinogens;

WHEREAS testing conducted in lake Memphremagog has already revealed PFAS
contamination in four species of fish in exceedance of EPA guidelines for consumption; and
of PFOS in surface waters approaching the MCL of 4ppt.

WHEREAS numerous scientific studies have demonstrated that landfill leachate contains
high concentrations of heavy metals, PFAS, volatile organic compounds, and other
emerging contaminants that are not fully removed by conventional wastewater treatment
processes, making their release into a drinking water source unacceptable;

WHEREAS elected officials on both sides of the border share a moral duty of mutual respect
and shared responsibility in preserving the Lake Memphremagog watershed;

THEREFORE, it is moved by Thérése McChutcheon and unanimously resolved:

1. THAT the Township of Stanstead formally and permanently opposes the treatment of
leachate from the Coventry landfill at the Newport municipal wastewater treatment
facility or at any other existing or future location within the Lake Memphremagog
watershed;

2. THAT the Township of Stanstead invites the elected officials of the City of Newport to
act in solidarity with Canadian lakeside communities by refusing to receive these
wastewater discharges, whether treated or not;

3. THAT the Township of Stanstead reiterates its commitment to protecting Lake
Memphremagog, its ecosystems, and its water quality, in accordance with the
precautionary principle;



../3

Resolution number 25-11-116

. THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to:

The members of the City Council of Newport, Vermont; Mr. Rick Ufford-Chase, Mayor
and all council members, 222, Main Street, Newport, Vt 05855
Rick.UffordChase@newportvermont.org

The Vermont Agency of Natural Resources; c/o Mrs. Julie More, 1 National Life Drive,
Davis 2, Montpellier, VT 05620-3901

Honorable Governor of Vermont, Mr. Phil Scott, Pavilion Building, 209 State Street,
Montpelier, Vt. 05609;

The Québec-Vermont Steering Committee on the “Cooperation Agreement on
Environmental Management of Lake Memphremagog and its Watershed”; c/o Mrs.
Ariane Orjikh, General Manager, 51, Cabana, Magog (Québec) J1X 2C4

The Memphrémagog RCM; Mr. Dominick Faucher, Director General and Clerk-
Treasurer, 455, rue MacDonald, bureau 200, Magog (Québec) J1X 1M2,
d.faucher@mrcmemphremagog.com

Québec’s Ministry of the Environment, the Fight Against Climate Change, Wildlife
and Parks; Mr. Bernard Drainville, Ministre de UEnvironnement, de la Lutte Contre les
changements climatiques, de la Faune et des Parc, 674, boulevard René-Lévesque
Est, 30°, Etage, Québec, {(Québec) G1R 5V7 ministre@environnement.gouv.qc.ca

The Member of the National Assembly for the riding of Orford; Mr. Gilles Bélanger
Orford County Deputy, 2389, rue Principale Ouest, Suite 100, MGOG (Québec) J1X
0J4 Gilles.Belanger.ORFO@assnat.gc.ca

The federat Members of Parliment for the ridings of Brome-Missisquoi, Sherbrooke,
and Compton-Stanstead;

e« The Honorable Mr. Louis Villeneuve, Riding of Brome-Missisguoi
louis.villeneuve@parl.gc.ca

« The Honorable Mrs. Elisabeth Briére, Riding of Sherbrooke, M20 2640, rue
King Ouest, Sherbrooke, (Québec) J1J 2C3 Elisabeth Briere@parl.gc.ca

The organizations:

o Casella, 21 Landfill Lane, Coventry, Vt 05825
MCI, c/o Mrs. Ariane Orjikh, General Manager, 51, Cabana, Magog (Québec)
J1X2C4

|, the undersigned Nancy Vanasse, Acting Director General and Clerk Treasurer, of the
Township of Stanstead hereby certify that the above extract is true.

N ax e \/MC:JWL

Nancy Vanasse,

Acting Direct neral and Clerk Treasurer
778, Sheldon Roa

Canton de Stanstead, QC

J1X3W4

This resolufion is subject to approval by the municipal council at its next regular mesting.



Memo to City Council:

Re: Attorney Advice regarding proposed changes to Charter
From: Mayor Rick Ufford-Chase

Date: 12/19/2025

Council Members,

On advice of City attorneys, | have added an executive session to our special meeting on
Monday night to consider and discuss recommendations from Legal Counsel regarding the
proposed charter and the questions we submitted to them following our meeting on December
1, 2025.

| will be providing a confidential copy of their recommendations to you today. Attorney Beriah
Smith will be available to meet with us in Executive Session to answer any questions about their
advice. Following the Executive Session and hearing the advice of Counsel, | expect to come
out of Executive Session to discuss any changes to the draft of the proposed charter that you
would like to make before voting on whether to circulate an updated draft in the community and
go ahead with the first Public Hearing on the matter on January 5th as previously warned.

| intend to limit comments from the community to two minutes per item under discussion with the
understanding that if you choose to move ahead, we will have extended discussion during the
public hearings. | know that all of you have busy lives this week, and | hope to keep the meeting
to no more than an hour and a half.

| expect that Carter will be joining us virtually, and Andrew has let me know that he has a family
obligation that may be unable to change, but that he will submit and suggestions he has in
writing to me in advance of the meeting.

Rick



